
LICENSING COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: Moresby Meeting Room, Copeland Borough Council, 
Whitehaven Commercial Park, Moresby Parks, Whitehaven. 
CA28 8YD 

Date: Tuesday, 3rd September, 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Contact Officer: Jackie O'Reilly           Tel: 01946 598335

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

3. Minutes of the meetings held on 30 April 2019 (To Follow) and 13 June 
2019 

1 - 2

4. Appointment of Deputy Chair 

5. Licensing Training - verbal update 

6. Annual Review of Guidance on Determination of All Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licences 

3 - 16

EXEMPT INFORMATION
The Chair to move:
That under Section 100(a)(4)of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on the grounds that, 
if they were present, there could be disclosed to them exempt information as 
defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act.

7. Grant of Private Hire Driver's Licence 17 - 18

8. Grant of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence 19 - 20

9. Grant of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence 21 - 22

10. Renewal of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence 23 - 24

Public Document Pack



Membership: Councillors Andy Pratt (Chair), David Banks, James Date, Gwynneth Everett, 
Allan Forster, Fred Gleaves, Mike Hawkins, Linda Jones-Bulman, Sam Meteer, Brian O'Kane 
and Peter Tyson.

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 5983358
E-mail: jackie.oreilly@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



LICENSING COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13th June 2019

PRESENT Councillors Andy Pratt (Chair), David Banks, James Date, Allan Forster, 
Fred Gleaves, Mike Hawkins, Linda Jones-Bulman, Sam Meteer, Brian 
O’kane, Peter Tyson.   

OFFICER Jackie O’Reilly, Public Protection Manager

LEGAL ADVISOR Michaela Peet, Assistant Solicitor. 
Luke Blaney, Law Student

LC 01/130619 Apologies for absence 

Gwynneth Everett

LC 02/130619 Declaration of interest 

There were no declarations of interests in agenda items. 

LC 03/130619 Minuets of meeting held on 9th April 2019 

Resolved – minuets approved with slight amendment. 

LC 04/130619 Appointment of sub-committee chairmen (4) 

Nominated: - Peter Tyson 
David Banks
Brian O’Kane
Sam Meteer

Resolved – Nominations agreed. 

There was issue raised regarding how Taxi and Licensing panel was to 
be run now there is no separate committee for this. Ii was agreed that 
the office would speak with the legal department and produce some 
terms of reference regarding the same. 

LC 05/130619 Gambling Act 2005 – Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
The policy had been out for public consultation following Council’s 
approval on the 9th April 2019. There had been 4 responses received. 
These responses had been incorporated into the policy and revisions 
had been made. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



The revised policy was presented to the Committee by the Lead 
Officer. 

The Committee made comments in respect of the maps at the 
Appendix to the report. The officer confirmed to the Committee that 
the maps attached to the policy were to be updated so that there 
were to include more than just betting shops. It was agreed that the 
Officer would provide members with a copy of the maps electronically 
and that members can comment on these as they will have 
knowledge of their wards. It was also agreed that the maps would be 
reviewed annual with any additions or subtractions made at the 
appropriate time. 

Resolved – Committee agreed that the revised policy statement 
would be recommended to full council that the policy, with the 
changes to the maps discussed, be adopted. 

LC 06/130619 Date and Time of next meeting 

This is to be arranged once training of members has taken place. It is 
likely to be early September. Once a date is arranged it will be 
circulated to members. 

Page 2



LC 03.09.19

Review of Copeland Guidance on the Determination of all Hackney Carriages and Private 
Hire Licences

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Non-Executive function

LEAD OFFICER: J O’Reilly, Public Protection Manager

REPORT AUTHOR: J O’Reilly, Public Protection Manager

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Hackney carriage and private hire drivers, operators and vehicle proprietors are 
responsible for the safety of the public.  In the case of drivers, on a direct, face to 
face basis. Passengers and others must not only be safe, but must also feel safe, and 
high standards of integrity must be demonstrated and upheld.

1.2 Copeland adopted and approved Guidelines on 28th June 2018 to provide clear 
details on the decision making process when determining the suitability of applicants 
and licensees in connection with hackney carriage and private hire driver, vehicle 
and operator licences.

1.3 The guidelines consider how regard should be given to the antecedent history of the 
applicant or licence holder and its relevance to their “fitness and propriety” or 
“suitability”.  This would include previous convictions but may also include other 
information that may come to light for the licensing authority to consider.

1.4 The guidelines were informed by the Institute of Licensing Guidance published in 
April 2018.  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Members are asked to review the Guideline approved on 28th June 2019 – the 
guidelines are attached at Appendix 1.

Summary and Recommendation:

Members review the Copeland 2018 Guidelines on the determination of all Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licences at Appendix 1.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 11

CHANGES FOR 2019 REVIEW

GUIDANCE ON 

DETERMINATION OF ALL 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE 

HIRE LICENCES

Approved by the Taxi & General Licensing Panel - Dated:  28.06.2018
Review date: 3rd September 2019
Version 2 

Page 5



Page 2 of 11
Page 6



Page 3 of 11

          
1.0 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................3

2.0 GENERAL ..........................................................................................................................3

3.0 DRIVERS: ..........................................................................................................................4

1. Crimes resulting in death..................................................................................................5

2. Exploitation......................................................................................................................5

3. Sex and indecency offences ..............................................................................................5

4. Offences involving violence ..............................................................................................6

5. Possession of weapon ......................................................................................................6

6. Dishonesty .......................................................................................................................6

7. Drugs................................................................................................................................6

8. Discrimination ..................................................................................................................7

9. Motoring convictions........................................................................................................7

10. Drink-driving/driving under the influence of drugs ...........................................................7

11. Using a hand-held mobile telephone or hand-held device whilst driving...........................7

12. Other motoring offences: .................................................................................................8

a) Minor Traffic Offence .......................................................................................................8

b) Major Traffic Offences ......................................................................................................8

13. Hackney carriage and private hire offences ......................................................................8

14. Vehicle use offences .........................................................................................................8

4.0 PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS: ..............................................................................................9

5.0 VEHICLE PROPRIETORS: ....................................................................................................9

Page 7



Page 4 of 11

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of hackney carriage and private hire licences is to ensure the safety of the public 

and a licence should not be granted by Copeland Borough Council unless it is satisfied that the 

applicant is a safe and suitable/fit and proper person.  This document details how Copeland 

Borough Council determines whether a person is safe and suitable either to be granted a 

licence or to retain a licence.

1.2 Previous offending behaviour can be considered as a predictor in determining future behaviour 

and it is essential that Copeland as the licencing authority considers all relevant factors including 

previous convictions, cautions and complaints and the time elapsed since these were 

committed. 

Where an applicant has more than one conviction, showing a pattern or tendency irrespective 

of time since the convictions, serious consideration will need to be given as to whether they 

are a safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a licence.

1.3 The guidance has been informed by the Institute of Licensing Guidance on determining the 

suitability of applicants and licensees in the hackney and private hire trades – April 2018.  The 

guidance complements the Local Government Association Taxi and Private Hire Licensing 

Councillors Handbook.

2.0 GENERAL

2.1 Copeland Borough Council will always assess Safeness and Suitability (fit and proper person 

test) 

2.2 The guidance does not contain detailed list of offences.  All offences are allocated to a 

general category such as ‘dishonesty’ or ‘drugs’.  The reasons are to be prevent the 

arguments that if a particular offence is not listed it is not covered and differentiation of 

Page 8



Page 5 of 11

seriousness within categories

2.3 Officers will apply the guidelines when assessing applications and will use delegated powers 

to approve and grant licences

2.4 Applications that cannot be approved and granted under delegated powers will be reported 

to the Licensing Committee for consideration.  The Licensing Committee will be informed of 

the reasons that delegated powers to approve and grant could not be used and will consider 

any mitigating circumstances that the applicant provides.  The Licensing Committee will 

consider and apply this guidance and assess each case.

2.5 Applicants will be informed in writing that officers could not grant the application and the 

reason why.

2.6 Licensing Committees are a Hearing with Notice – the applicant will be provided with a 7 

days’ notice of a hearing.  Applicants may be accompanied by a representative at the 

Hearing.

2.7 The safe and suitable requirement is continuous, the guidance will be considered as part 

when determining the appropriate enforcement action 

2.8 Where an applicant has more than one conviction, showing a pattern or tendency 

irrespective of time since the convictions serious consideration will need to be given as to 

whether they are a safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a licence.

3.0 DRIVERS: 

3.1 A driver has direct responsibility for the safety of their passengers, direct responsibility for the 

safety of other road users and significant control over passengers who are in the vehicle.  As 

those passengers may be alone, and may also be vulnerable, any previous convictions or 

Page 9



Page 6 of 11

unacceptable behaviour will weigh heavily against a licence being granted or retained.

3.2 Where an applicant has more than one conviction showing a pattern or tendency 

irrespective of time since the convictions, serious consideration will be given as to whether 

they are a safe and suitable person.

3.3 An applicant must hold a full DVLA or equivalent driver’s licence, have the right to work in 

the UK and have a medical assessment.

3.4 The safe and suitable assessment will consider the offence categories listed in 1 - 14.

1. CRIMES RESULTING IN DEATH

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the death of another 

person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person they will not be 

licensed.

2. EXPLOITATION

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or has any 

connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual irrespective of whether 

the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be licensed.  This includes slavery, child 

sexual exploitation, grooming, psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an 

exhaustive list.

3. SEX AND INDECENCY OFFENCES

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal sexual activity 

or any form of indecency, a licence will not be granted.

In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant who is 

Page 10



Page 7 of 11

currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any “barred” list.

Where an applicant has more than one conviction, showing a pattern or tendency irrespective of

time since the convictions serious consideration will need to be given as to whether they are a

safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a licence.

IN RELATION TO SINGLE CONVICTIONS FOR THE OFFENCES LISTED IN 4 – 14 THE FOLLOWING TIME 

PERIODS SHOULD ELAPSE FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE SENTENCE OR THE DATE OF 

CONVICTION IF A FINE WAS IMPOSED BEFORE A LICENCE WILL BE GRANTED:

4. OFFENCES INVOLVING VIOLENCE

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence, or connected with any offence of 

violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of 

any sentence imposed. 

5. POSSESSION OF WEAPON

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon related offence, 

a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence 

imposed.

6. DISHONESTY

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or any offence where dishonesty 

is an element of the offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since 

the completion of any sentence imposed.

Page 11



Page 8 of 11

7. DRUGS

Where an applicant has any convictions for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or possession with 

intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, a licence will not be granted until 

at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the possession of drugs, a 

licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence 

imposed.  In these circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their own 

expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

8. DISCRIMINATION

Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any form, a licence 

will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

9. MOTORING CONVICTIONS

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the responsibility of 

carrying the public.  

Any motoring conviction demonstrates a lack of professionalism and will be considered seriously.  It 

is accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic 

offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence or may not result in action against an existing licence.  

Subsequent convictions reinforce the fact that the licensee does not take their professional 

responsibilities seriously and is therefore not a safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a 

licence.

Page 12



Page 9 of 11

10. DRINK-DRIVING/DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF DRUGS

Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of drugs, a licence 

will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence or driving 

ban imposed.  In these circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their 

own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

11. USING A HAND-HELD MOBILE TELEPHONE OR HAND-HELD DEVICE WHILST DRIVING

Where an applicant has a conviction for using a hand-held mobile telephone or hand-held device 

whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the conviction or 

completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

12. OTHER MOTORING OFFENCES:

A) MINOR TRAFFIC OFFENCE

A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve loss of life, driving under the 

influence of drugs, driving whilst using a mobile phone and has not resulted in injury to any person or 

damage to any property (including vehicles).  

Where an applicant has 7 or more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a 

licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence 

imposed.

B) MAJOR TRAFFIC OFFENCES

A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above and also any offence which 

resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property (including vehicles).  It also includes driving 

Page 13



Page 10 of 11

without insurance or any offence connected with motor insurance.  

Where an applicant has a conviction for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be 

granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

13. HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE OFFENCES

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or connected to hackney carriage 

or private hire activity (excluding vehicle use), a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 

elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

14. VEHICLE USE OFFENCES

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence which involved the use of a vehicle (including 

hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 

elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

4.0 PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS:

4.1 A private hire operator (“an operator”) does not have direct responsibility for the safety of 

passengers, other road users or direct contact with passengers who are in the private hire 

vehicle (except where they are also licensed as a private hire driver).  However, in performing 

their duties operators obtain and hold considerable amounts of personal and private 

information about passengers which must be treated in confidence and not revealed to 

others, or used by the operator or their staff for criminal or other unacceptable purposes.

4.2 As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the hackney carriage and 

private hire system is vital, the same standards will be applied to operators as those applied 

to drivers.  

4.3 Operators must ensure that any staff (whether employees or independent contractors) who are 

able to access any personal and private information are subject to the same standards as the 

operator themselves.  This will require the operator to require that staff who access private 

Page 14



Page 11 of 11

and personal information obtain an enhanced DBS certificate.  

4.4 If an operator is found not to be applying the required standards and using staff that do not 

meet the licensing authority’s overall criteria, that will lead to the operator’s licence being 

revoked.

4.5 Where an applicant has more than one conviction, serious consideration will be given as to 

whether they are a safe and suitable person.

5.0 VEHICLE PROPRIETORS:

5.1 Vehicle proprietors (both hackney carriage and private hire) have two principal 

responsibilities:-

(a)  They must ensure that the vehicle is maintained to an acceptable standard at all times.

(b) They must ensure that the vehicle is not used for illegal or illicit purposes.

5.2 Where an applicant has more than one conviction, serious consideration will need to be given 

as to whether they are a safe and suitable person.

5.3 As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the private hire system 

is vital, the same standards will be applied to vehicle proprietors as those applied to drivers.  

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meetings held on 30 April 2019 (To Follow) and 13 June 2019
	6 Annual Review of Guidance on Determination of All Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences
	Appendix 1 (Report 5) NEW GUIDELINES(TAXIS) - 2019 (v.2). (030919)docx

	7 Grant of Private Hire Driver's Licence
	8 Grant of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	9 Grant of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	10 Renewal of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence

